

## HORTON PARISH COUNCIL

### MINUTES OF THE PARISH MEETING HELD ON MONDAY 19<sup>th</sup> FEBRUARY 2018 IN

ST PETERS CHURCH, HORTON AT 7.30pm

Page 890

#### Public Forum

- A) 3 members of the public in attendance of the meeting.
- B) Cllr Linda Vijeh was in attendance of the meeting. Please see attached report (**Appendix 1**) written by Cllr Linda Vijeh for SCC/SSDC Councillor Monthly Report.
- 2851 PRESENT** Cllrs Adele Brady - Chair, David Johnson – Vice Chairman, Pippa Woodman, Vickie Hobbs, Ann Richards.
- 2852 APOLOGIES** Cllrs Julie Layzell, Ann Winter and Richard Clifford.
- 2853 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST** None.
- 2854 TO APPROVE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING** Minutes of the meeting held in February having previously been circulated were approved as a true record and correct record of the meeting. Cllrs approved, seconded and unanimously agreed.
- 2855 PLANNING APPLICATIONS**
- A) **18/00163/FUL – 24-37 Riverside, Horton** – Demolition of 8 residential units and office. Erection of 10 No. single storey dwellings with associated parking, garages and landscaping.

The councillors discussed this application at length with the applicants and agent who were in attendance of the meeting.

Issues discussed were:

- The number of units to be demolished - In the previous application it stated that 14 No. units were to be demolished and the current application states 8 No. units are to be demolished. Clerk sought clarification over this but the applicants were unsure of the total number of flats to be demolished. However, 8 No. meter boxes have been disconnected plus 1 extra which served the visitors accommodation.
- Removal of existing trees including 2 No. trees which are protected by a Tree Preservation Order – Councillors expressed their concern over the loss of trees however, the applicant and agent put forward their plans/ideas for specialist contractors to plant mature trees once the development has been completed. Councillors were shown pictures of the proposed trees and councillors were happy with these proposals.
- Occupation of the dwellings for over 55's – prior to the application being submitted the applicants and agent attended parish council meetings and stated that they would be happy for the development to be conditioned that only over 55's are to occupy the dwellings. However, the current application does not stipulate this and the councillors had concerns about this. After discussions between the applicants, agent and councillors in the meeting, the applicant has agreed to the 6 No. two bed properties to be for over 55's only and the 2 No. three bed properties fronting Goose Lane are not to be restricted. Therefore, please can this be conditioned if approval is granted.
- Parking and access for existing residents – Lengthy discussions were held over potential parking issues. Applicant stated that all on road parking would still be available and the current roads are wide enough to accommodate on road parking and access for emergency vehicles to pass parked vehicles. The proposed development offers parking and visitor spaces per dwelling. Applicant stated that the visitor spaces could be used by the existing residents of Riverside. Councillors requested that applicant does not permit future occupants of the proposed dwellings to erect signage stating only their property can park in visitor spaces. Please can this also be conditioned if approval is granted.

- Conversion of garages – concerns were raised over permitted development rights allowing the proposed garages to be converted into additional living accommodation resulting in a loss of parking spaces. The applicant stated he had no control over this. Councillors request that SSDC condition that garages cannot be converted without prior consent from SSDC.

Taking into account all the comments made above, The Parish Council unanimously support the application.

- B) 18/00508/FUL – Brambles, Thornleigh, Hanning Road, Horton** – Alterations and conversion of garage to residential accommodation. Erection of a 2 No. single storey extensions, erection of detached garage and 2 metre wall to north boundary.

Parish Council unanimously support the application.

- C) 17/04683/OUT – Bullen Bungalow, Goose Lane, Horton** – Amended Plans

The Parish Council no longer object to the planning application on highway/access issues and fully support the Highways Consultant comments. However, the Parish Council do object to the loss of trees.

**2856 PLANNING APPEAL**

- A) 17/02636/FUL** – Sunnyside, Pottery Road, Horton - Noted

**2857 PLANNING DECISIONS**

- A) 17/04462/FUL** – Martins Farm, Whitney Hill, Horton - Noted  
**B) 17/03819/FUL** – Horton Manor, Old A358, Horton - Noted  
**C) 17/04784/OUT** – Land Adj Kimberley, Forest Mill Lane, Horton - Noted  
**D) 17/04876/FUL** – Orchard House, Langworthy Orchard, Horton - Noted

**2858 A358 CONSULTATION RESPONSE** Discussions were held over the consultation. The following points are the key points and will be contained in the formal response to the consultation:

- Traffic lights are needed on the roundabout at Southfields as it's already problematic to enter the roundabout.
- Junction G needs to be moved to Ashill/Stewley. The current proposal only serves Ilton and Ashill is a bigger community and needs priority access. The community of Horton and Boradway often avoid the Southfields roundabout as often a lot of congestion so result in going to Ashill to join the A358. The sizes of Horton, Broadway and Ashill is far larger than Ilton
- The orange route is the preferred route.

**2859 A303 CONSULTATION RESPONSE** Discussions held and the duelling of the A303 is supported by the parish council.

**2860 LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOUNDARY COMMISSION CONSULTATION** Horton parish council have no comments to make on the consultation.

**2861 FINANCE**

Proposal – To approve payment of the following cheques:

- St Peters Church - hall rental - cheque No. 000700 - £20.00 – Unanimously approved
- Spark – training course – cheque no. 000701 - £60.00 - Unanimously approved
- SALC – annual subscription fee – cheque no. 000702 - £226.14 - Unanimously approved

**2862 CLERKS REPORT AND CORRESPONDENCE** None.

**2863 ANY OTHER MATTERS RAISED WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIRMAN** Update from Cllr Vickie Hobbs on the playing field committee meeting. Points raised at the committee meeting are:

- Spelling error has been reported on new playing field sign

**Page 892**

- Committee/residents continue to request telephone number on sign in case of an emergency
- Requests for a maintenance schedule for the playing field
- Update requested for proposed cost and time scale for fixing/removal of current equipment on playing field
- An Easter egg hunt/afternoon tea is proposed in order to get the community interested in the playing field project.
- Horton Playing Field Committee have taken over the running of the village breakfast club
- £585.87 was left over from the previous planning field project in 2005/06 and was transferred to the parish council bank account. The committee has requested these funds are transferred to the new playing field project.

**2864 DATE OF NEXT MEETING:** 7.30pm Monday 19<sup>th</sup> March 2018

## APPENDIX 1 - ILMINSTER DIVISION COUNTY/DISTRICT COUNCILLOR REPORT JANUARY REPORT 2018

### SCC - LETTER TO TERESA MAY

The leader of SCC met with the five Somerset MPs this month. They have all signed a joint letter to the Prime Minister detailing the financial strain that Somerset County Council is currently suffering. 'This is the first time that SCC have secured the support of all five MPs to approach a Senior Minister in this way, working together so positively. The outcome is less certain.'

### COUNTY FARMS

I met with the officer responsible for handling the disposal of County Farms to gain a greater understanding of the issues involved, and the impact this will have on the local community, and have a further meeting planned for early Feb.

### JOINT SCRUTINY – Children & Families + Adults & Health

The focus of this meeting was on the health and well-being of children and young people, with particular emphasis on mental health. Committee members expressed high levels of dismay at the current level of intervention and support in place.

In Somerset during 2015/16 there were 643 10-24 year olds who had been admitted to hospital as a result of self-harm. There is also increasing concern over suicide pacts among young people.

Presentations at the meeting included plans to improve the current situation. Support for pregnant women with mental health issues was also discussed. Results of an NHS funding bid are awaited.

### HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

At this month's meeting, plans for the over-arching strategy to 'improve the lives of Somerset residents', involving all agencies, was discussed. This also highlighted the need to retain young people in the county; currently net migration out of county is exacerbated by the lack of a university. What is acknowledged is the need for combined working, and the difficulty this poses.

There is currently no 24-hour pharmacy provision in Somerset, due to lack of demand.

### CARERS' VOICE

Somerset Carers' Service advice line, offering support and guidance is - 0800 31 68 600

Or text CARER TO 78070. [www.somersetcarers.org.uk](http://www.somersetcarers.org.uk) provides links with groups and events in the area and also assists with applications and financial support. WebChat is soon to be launched.

32 new community/carer/village agents have now been appointed, across 7 county areas.

### FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE

The decisions to deliver SCC's new Family Support Service are progressing. This will join together the existing early help service, Getset and SCC's public health nursing services (health visitors and school nurses). It is intended to make it easier for children, young people and families to get the support where and when they need it and forms part of the prevention strategy.

Further information can be found by contacting [publichealth@somerset.gov.uk](mailto:publichealth@somerset.gov.uk)

### ADULT SOCIAL CARE PRECEPT

In the face of a national social care crisis the Government has allowed Local Authorities to add up to 3% to help meet the cost of providing Adult Social Care. Somerset has a significant ageing population, with Adult Social Care in the county accounting for over 40% of the total budget. The additional 3% Adult Social Care precept will enable SCC to bring forward plans to meet demand and improve the service going forward.

### SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD

For 2016/17 there were four key areas of focus, seen as the greatest risk - Early Help, Court Child Protection System, Neglect, Child Sexual Exploitation to address to shortcomings highlighted by OFSTED.

In the annual report in-depth information was provided in relation to child deaths, and those subject to child protection plans in addition to adoption and other residential placements.

Commented [LV1]:

#### **CHILDREN'S SERVICES - OFSTED**

OFSTED have now completed their monitoring visit. The outcome is that Children's services in Somerset require improvement to be judged good.

1. Children who need help and protection - requires improvement
2. Children looked after and achieving permanence - requires improvement
- 2.1 Adoption performance - good
- 2.2 Experiences and progress of care leavers - requires improvement
3. Leadership, management and governance - requires improvement

#### **ILMINSTER/CREWKERNE SCHOOLS REVIEW**

A meeting of Head Teachers and Governors from Crewkerne and Ilminster Schools was held this month to consider options to address the current situation, where budgets and resources are increasingly limited to enable continuation of the current 3-tier system. There was acknowledgement that whatever solution is chosen there is a need to minimise disruption, avoid school closures and ensure that the key focus is on positive outcomes for our local children.

School Heads & Chairs of Governors are to set up a working group with the aim of holding 3 initial meetings before the end of the spring term.

In Ilminster division the schools that will be affected are Greenfylde and Swanmead and I remain in contact with both Head Teachers.

#### **CARILLION COLLAPSE**

SCC have said *'We are fortunate that the NIDR has been completed, although it was subject to major delays. We remain in dispute with Carillion and have robustly resisted its excessive, inflated claims for costs. We still have a substantial claim against Carillion for delays and continue to pursue this. This is a developing situation and we will be working with the official receivers to resolve this matter as soon as possible'*.

Carillion operates a joint venture partnership, with the main civil engineering contractor (Gigaclear) to deliver the full-fibre broadband network for Connecting Devon and Somerset (CDS).

When awarding the broadband contract, CDS was satisfied with the robustness of Gigaclear's contingency plans and has been assured that there are a range of options available to deal with changes in circumstances affecting its sub-contractors. In light of recent developments, CDS has discussed the detail of contingency plans and options to ensure that the new publicly-funded broadband network is delivered on time and on budget.

#### **BROADBAND UPDATE**

Connecting Devon and Somerset (CDS) Superfast Broadband Programme Phase one delivery is now complete. Additional funding has allowed SCC to extend the coverage of phase two contracts. This is being progressed through the change request process. Details are now available of the initial areas that the phase 2 contracts with Gigaclear will reach.

Ilminster falls within the Gigaclear Lot 3 roll out. The roll out schedules can be found on the following webpage <https://www.gigaclear.com/connecting-devon-and-somerset-rollout-schedule/>. It is then necessary to select Lot 3. There is some coverage from Gigaclear in the Ilminster area. Those wishing to find out more can check their postcode and register their interest without obligation via <https://www.gigaclear.com/postcode-checker/>

#### **DEVON & SOMERSET FIRE & RESCUE SERVICE**

The National Fire Chiefs Council has recommended that all new build schools are fitted with sprinkler systems. This is mandatory in Scotland and Wales. Currently only 5% of schools have sprinklers. Fire Safety visits, targeting elderly, vulnerable residents are ongoing.

I have been advised that a budget shortfall of 9.1m over the next three years is anticipated

As with other services across the country, further savings are required in order to be able to balance budgets while continued cuts in central government funding continue

It is also expected that the impact of potential pay rises and inflation will not be covered sufficiently by any council tax increases for the coming year.

To further increase the service's response efficiency, and to take into account difficult access conditions, a 3-tier system, utilising different sized fire engines, is being introduced over the next three years. Deployment decisions will be matched to risk, utilising new rapid intervention vehicles.

#### SSDC – TRANSFORMATION

The CEO gave an update on progress, outlining new job roles and service structure for the next phase of the project. Consultation with staff, unions etc. is now under way.

#### SSDC – MONITORING OFFICER

Following the death of Ian Clarke, Angela Watson has been designated SSDC's Monitoring Officer. A deputy will be recruited in due course.

#### SSDC - AREA WEST

At this month's meeting, in response to a question from a member of the public, brief information was provided on the purchase of an incinerator, sited at Bristol, to assist in addressing concerns over the high levels of disposable waste that is having a negative impact on our environment.

#### ELECTORAL COMMISSION BOUNDARY REPORT

Recommendations are now out to consultation. In this area, the recommendation is for Ilminster to become a 3-member District Council Ward, encompassing Neroche Ward (Ashill, Donyatt, Broadway & Horton villages). Early signs indicate that this is not something that would be welcomed by Neroche or Ilminster. Views on the proposed boundary changes should be submitted by 19<sup>th</sup> March 2018. The full recommendations and interactive maps are available on the Commission's website at [consultation.lgbce.org.uk](http://consultation.lgbce.org.uk) (go to South Somerset and insert your postcode).

#### LIBRARY SERVICE

A consultation exercise is now underway, for the next 12 weeks, on specific proposals to help shape the future of Somerset library services. Ilminster is one of the libraries under threat and a number of local residents have been in contact with me in relation to this. A series of proposals for the future delivery of library services in different areas of Somerset are set out in the decision paper and can be viewed here: <http://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=632>.

#### PACT

At this month's meeting concern was expressed over local incidents of anti-social behaviour which appear to be perpetrated by a small number of individuals known to the police.

A **What Matters/Who Cares?** event has been organised for **Mon. March 5<sup>th</sup> at The Shrubbery, 7.30pm – 9.30pm**, to explore ways in which local groups and individuals such as schools, farming, businesses, public services etc. can work together to support community issues and activities.

Representatives of local community groups are urged to attend. At this month's Ashill PC meeting, agreement was reached to consider options for setting up a Local Area Partnership that may help with activities such as the installation of SIDs, winter gritting and community transport.

#### HIGHWAYS

Changes at the South Somerset Area Highways Office. Chris Weeks, the Assistant Highway Service Manager, has left the area highways team. Assurance has been received that it will be 'business as usual' in the Highways Office. Any correspondence previously for his attention should still be sent to [countyroads-southsom@somerset.gov.uk](mailto:countyroads-southsom@somerset.gov.uk) for action. Derek Davies has been appointed to replace Chris, starting in April. Colin Fletcher has now retired.

#### HIGHWAYS – PLANNED ROADWORKS

Cudworth	Cudworth Street & Knights Lane	Carriageway resurfacing. Temporary road closure. Dates TBC.
----------	--------------------------------	---

#### HIGHWAYS - DOWLISH WAKE

Concerns remain over speeding, with the resulting danger to pedestrians at the Ilminster/Kingstone junction. Further discussion with highways is ongoing.

#### SID READINGS – DONYATT CHESHAYES HILL 9-23<sup>RD</sup> Jan. 2018

28,525 total vehicles      33mph ave. speed      85% at 37mph.      1581 exceeding 40mph.

#### SID READING – ASHILL – OLD A358 NR HARVEY WAY 9-23<sup>RD</sup> Jan. 2018

3,104 total vehicles      32 mph ave. speed      85% at 40mph      576 exceeding 40mph.

#### ILMINSTER FLOODING UPDATE

Since the receipt of the interim report in Dec. I have no further info. to report at the time of writing.

#### DONYATT SIS CONSULTATION

This is ongoing, with options being explored to achieve the best outcome for the village, within budgetary constraints.

#### HIGHWAYS – A358 CONSULTATION

Highways England has now launched a supplementary consultation on the A358 improvements between Taunton to Southfields, closing on Tues. 27 Feb. 2018.

Views are being sought on a number of options for the section between the M5 and the A358 at West Hatch and a single proposal of widening for the A358 between West Hatch and Southfields Roundabout on the A303.

In response to feedback from the first consultation last year HE have now included more information on the planned route and more than one detailed option for consideration.

More information and the opportunity to comment online is available through the HE website

<http://roads.highways.gov.uk/projects/a358-taunton-to-southfields>

The consultation includes public exhibition events where the public can view proposals, meet members of the project team and ask questions.

Information is also available to view at public information points, including SCC(County Hall A Block reception), SSDC (Brympton Way reception), Ilminster Meeting House and Arts Centre.

#### SCC timetable for response to the consultation

30 Jan: Presentation to Scrutiny outlining HE's proposals and key elements of proposed response. This meeting generated a high degree of interest and concern from the public.

Early Feb: Draft written response published on SCC website for public comment.

16 Feb: Deadline for public comment on SCC's response.

19 Feb: Formal response agreed through a non-key decision by Cabinet Member for Business, Inward Investment and Policy.

27 Feb: Formal consultation response submitted to Highways England.

#### HORTON RECREATION GROUND

Local residents made representations at this month's PC meeting to gain their support in moving forward to improve facilities. A working group has now been set up and a public meeting was well attended by local residents keen to explore options and funding opportunities.

#### DEFIBRILLATORS

Local residents are advised that in an emergency situation that the location of nearby defibrillators is known and communicated to whichever of the emergency services are contacted.

To register Defibrillators with SWAST, use the link below to register units in your communities.

<https://www.swast.nhs.uk/What%20We%20Do/register-your-defibrillator-with-swastf.htm>

#### FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE

Since 2016 the [Children and Young People's Plan \(CYPP\) has prioritised](#) "establishing early help hubs in local communities offering multi-agency integrated services that identify and support children and families who need additional help and can intervene quickly".

The public consultation, receiving 850 responses, finished in Dec. Proposals included increased use of technology, and providing a wide network of places in local communities delivering, making use of appropriate venues, such as in families' homes, schools, health centres and village halls.

The intention is for 8 Family Centres to operate within a wider community network than the existing 'Sure Start' programme, although some would continue to offer early childhood services including education and nursery places. The integration of getsset and Health Visitor/School Nursing service is planned, in addition to support for focusing spend on services rather than buildings.

Almost 300 regular support services are provided at 150 locations across the county, mainly in community venues. The intention is for this to continue based on local need.

Health Visitor services, would continue in community venues and in homes. Nurseries currently operating from children's centre buildings will continue; in some areas expanded and enhanced.

There is acknowledgement that more work is needed in some locations (e.g. Chard).

The recommendations went to the Scrutiny Committee, Children and Families this week, with a final decision being taken on 12<sup>th</sup> Feb. When the current contract with Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust comes to an end in Mar. 2019, Public Health Nursing services will be delivered directly by SCC as part of the Family Support Service.

#### **PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL VACANCIES**

A number of local parishes currently have vacancies that they are active looking to fill. With the increasing devolution of responsibility for local services to town and parish councils it is important that our rural communities are represented. If you care.... get involved in the decision making.

**100 YEARS OF THE VOTE FOR WOMEN** – A Champagne Tea is planned to mark this event on 8<sup>th</sup> Feb. at The Shrubbery. £15 p.p. 3pm-5pm. To book your place contact me – details below.



## ACTIVITIES/MEETINGS

6/1	Ilminster Senior Citizens' Christmas Lunch
8/1	Dowlish Wake PC
8/1	Donyatt PC
9/1	Ilminster/Crewkerne Schools Meeting – Wadham
11/1	Horton Recreation Ground meeting
11/1	Neroche School Appeal Hearing
12/1	SCC – Joint Scrutiny Meeting
12/1	Winsham Panto
13/1	Winsham PC Surgery
14/1	Donyatt VH B'fast
15/1	Horton PC
15/1	Ashill PC
16/1	PACT – Ilminster
16/1	Ilminster Town Council
17/1	DSFRS – Audit Committee Meeting
17/1	SDDC – Area West
18/1	SCC – Health & Wellbeing Board
18/1	SCC – County Farms
18/1	SCC – Julie Skorupka – Children's Services
18/1	SDDC – full council
18/1	SDDC – Transformation update
23/1	Childhood Trauma Training
23/1	Highways England A358 upgrade consultation
23/1	Ilminster Lit. Fest. Trustees meeting
25/1	IMEx meeting
25/1	Ilminster resident social services meeting
26/1	Highways meeting – Dowlish Wake
26/1	Dowlish Wake – Jack & the Beanstalk
28/1	Charity Quiz – Ilminster Bowling Club
29/1	Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service forum meeting - Exeter
29/1	Horton Recreation Ground meeting
30/1	SCC Governance Manager re: social services
30/1	SCC – Policies & Place Scrutiny
30/1	Broadway PC meeting
30/1	Donyatt PC meeting

Please note that I will be away from 1<sup>st</sup> – 10<sup>th</sup> March.